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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL TO UPDATE THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR  

CITY OF BIG LAKE, MINNESOTA 

 

 

SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

This document solicits Requests for Proposal (RFP) to update the Comprehensive Plan 

for the City of Big Lake, Minnesota. 

 
Contract Administration 
 
Address all correspondence regarding this RFP to: 
 

Michael Healy 
City Planner 
City of Big Lake 
160 Lake Street North 
Big Lake, MN 55309 
mhealy@biglakemn.org 

 
All firms whom receive or download this RFP are requested to register their name and email address 
by sending an email to mhealy@biglakemn.org.  Any revisions or corrections to this RFP after   
posting will be communicated to those registered RFP holders. Failure to register your contact 
information may result in nonparticipation of the RFP process.  A proposal will not be considered if 
it fails to include all requested information as detailed in this original RFP and any subsequent 
modifications. 
 
Any requests for additional information that may be needed for the preparation of the proposal 
should be directed to City Planner Michael Healy at (763) 251-2977, or mhealy@biglakemn.org. All 
questions must be received before 4:30 pm, October 14, 2016. Questions received after that time 
will not be addressed.  
 
Submittal of Proposal 
 
Please provide three (3) paper copies and one (1) electronic (pdf) copy of the Proposal for the 
evaluation process.   
 
Address submittals to: 
 Michael Healy 

City Planner 
 City of Big Lake 
 160 Lake Street North 
 Big Lake, MN 55309  
 
Submittals will be accepted until 4:30 p.m. on October 14, 2016. 
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Acceptance of Proposal Contents 
 
The contents of this RFP will be included as part of the contractual obligations if a contract ensues.  
All information in the proposal is subject to disclosure under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 
Chapter 13 – Minnesota Government Data Practices Act. 

 

SECTION 2: OVERALL SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The final scope of services will be developed in collaboration with the selected firm.  
Components of the Plan, at a minimum, will include:   
 
1. Participatory Process – Develop, coordinate and conduct a public process to encourage 

resident input. The interaction and participation of residents, business leaders, elected 
officials, and administration is critical for the development and success of the plan. A 
participation program will need to be developed to incorporate local knowledge and 
experience. The City of Big Lake desires to see a creatively designed participatory process 
that seeks out and involves residents who would be unlikely to participate in standard 
workshop-style community engagement. The goal is to increase resident ownership of the 
final product.  

 
2. Background – Provide and analyze the historical background of development in the City.  

Include current conditions and trends as well as emerging issues that have long-term 
implications. 

 
3. Assumptions – Analyze the assumed effects of external forces (physical, social, economic, 

and political) on the future of the local community. Issues and forecasts of local and regional 
growth will be included.  

 
4. Vision/Overview of the Plan – Provide a vision or alternative visions of the long-term 

future design and character of the community. The vision will represent interests of a broad 
range of citizens rather than a few special-interest groups. Cost/benefit implications of each 
alternative will be included. 

 
5. Planning Elements – To include discussion on such elements as land use, transportation, 

community facilities, utilities, natural resources, parks and open space, urban design policies, 
urban design, image and opportunities, etc. 

 
6. Short and Long Term goals - Discuss and illustrate the potential short and long-term 

impacts of the plan on the community. 
 

7. Implementation/Action Steps – Develop a list of strategies and implementation measures to 
accomplish the goals and objectives of the plan.   

 
8. Optional but Strongly Preferred Component: Online Interactive Module- In addition to 

the physical comprehensive plan document, the City of Big Lake desires to create a graphical 
interactive web module that helps residents and businesses understand the core components 
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of the comprehensive plan in a more user-friendly manner. The City would like the bid to 
include pricing for this feature. The City may or may not move forward with the 
development of the online interactive module. A Consultant will receive additional points 
towards their ranking in the selection process if their bid includes cost-effective pricing for 
an online module and the City chooses to move forward with its development. 

 
The City of Big Lake desires for the comprehensive planning process to be highly participatory and 
wants to see resident input given a prominent role in shaping the finished plan. City Officials and 
City Staff recently attended a strategic planning workshop where they generated ideas that they 
would like to see incorporated into the comprehensive planning process. Additionally, Big Lake 
recently began collaborating with Sherburne County’s Statewide Health Improvement Program 
(SHIP) to promote community health and active transportation at both the local and the regional 
level. The City’s existing priorities should be addressed by the Consultant in their proposal 
submission. The list that follows should, however, still be considered malleable and can be further 
shaped and refined through resident input: 
 

1.) Promote and support active transportation and healthy lifestyles and continue making 
investments in local and regional bicycling and pedestrian infrastructure. Big Lake has 
adopted a Complete Streets Policy, a Safe Routes to School Plan, and a Comprehensive 
Parks and Trails Plan. The City would like the comprehensive plan to weave these plans 
together and lay out a clear path for achieving its community health and active 
transportation goals. 

2.) Develop the idea of Big Lake as a destination. What is it that makes Big Lake special? What 
is distinctive about the community that makes people want to move here, work here, or 
otherwise spend their time in the city? 

3.)  Market the City’s business-friendly environment and its strong community of small and 
local businesses. 

4.) Leverage transportation strengths. The presence of the Northstar Commuter Rail and the 
city’s proximity to multiple major highways are strengths that can be very attractive to 
residents, businesses, and programs that value effective transportation. Big Lake is well-
connected to both the Twin Cities metro and the Saint Cloud metro. 

5.) Increase collaboration between the City and the Big Lake School District. This collaboration 
could include joint planning for park infrastructure development and park programming. 

6.) Increase summer event programming to strengthen community pride. 
7.) Partner with regional and state interests to ensure consistent access to broadband internet 

throughout the community.  

 
SECTION 3:  PROPOSAL 

 
The proposal submittal shall contain only the information requested below.   
 
Proposal Format 
 
The submittal should follow the Table of Contents listed below: 
 

1. General Information 
2. Project Understanding 



 5 

3. Project Approach 
4. Proposed Project Team and Experience 
5. Schedule 
6. Any Additional Information as Needed 
7. Total Consultant Cost  

 
A brief description of each section is as follows: 
 
1. General Information 

Provide general information and a brief history of the Consultant’s firm. Include similar 
information on key subconsultants, if any, proposed for the project. 

 
2. Project Understanding 

Include a summary of the Consultant’s understanding of this project. 
 
3. Project Approach 

Provide specific approaches, methods, and assumptions that will be utilized to accomplish each 
work item as listed in Section 2.   

 
4. Proposed Project Team and Experience 

 Identify key team members and describe their specific roles on the project.  Include key team 
members from sub-consultant firms, if any.   

 Describe relevant experience and provide information on at least three (3) reference projects 
completed in the last six (6) years.  Provide references and contact information.   

 Include one-page resumes only for key members of the project team, including field 
personnel. 

 Include specific descriptions of proposed team members’ roles on reference projects. 
 

5. Schedule 
Provide a proposed schedule from project initiation to final completion.  The schedule should 
include a listing of key tasks within each phase, key milestones and approximate dates, and 
deliverables. 

 
6. Additional Information 

Include any other information that is believed to be pertinent, but not specifically requested 
elsewhere in this RFP.  
 

7. Total Consultant Cost 
 
The consultant shall break out the cost as follows: 

a. Proposed costs for each scope of work as listed in Section 2.   
b. Hourly rates for all consultant employees who are expected to work on this 

project.  These rates shall be the agreed upon costs for any additional services 
requested by the City of Big Lake, above what is detailed in the RFP.   

c. Reimbursable costs including detail of service or item and applicable charge per 
unit. 

d. Not to Exceed cost for the project. 
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Proposals that do not include a ‘Not to Exceed’ cost will be disregarded with no further 
consideration. It is the responsibility of the proposing firm to accurately predict the amount of 
time that they will need to spend on the project.   

 
SECTION 4:  CONSULTANT SELECTION 

 
Process 
 
City staff will evaluate and rank all submitted proposals. After conclusion of this review, staff will 
recommend the most qualified consulting teams or firms to the City Council. The decision will be 
based on a combination including, but not limited to: ranking, presentation of materials, and other 
qualifications. The Council may review the recommendations and invite the top candidates to 
conduct a presentation before the Council, members of City staff and representatives of the 
Planning Commission. Presentations are expected to occur in November. The City Council will 
make the final selection of the consultant firm, with input from the subcommittee, Planning 
Commission and staff. Once authorized to proceed, the “most qualified” consulting firm will be 
expected to immediately assist in developing a final scope of services and contractual agreement. 
 
Following review of the proposals by the City, selected Consultants may be asked to make oral 
presentations of their proposals to City representatives. Upon conclusion of the presentations, the 
city will select a Consultant to negotiate a contract as follows: 
 

1. If, for any reason, a firm is not able to commence the services in their Proposal within 
30 days of the award, the City reserves the right to contract with another qualified firm. 

2. The City shall not be liable for any expenses incurred by the Consultant prior to the 
signing of a contract including, but not limited to, the Proposal preparation, attendance 
at interviews, or final contract negotiations. 

3. The Proposal must be signed in ink by an official authorized to bind the Consultant to 
its provisions that will be included as part of an eventual contract. The Proposal must 
include a statement as to the period during which the Proposal remains valid. This 
period must be at least 90 days from the date of the submittal. 

4. The City reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals submitted or to request 
additional information from any or all of the proposing firms. 
 

The City of Big Lake reserves the right to waive any irregularity in any submittal or reject any or all 
proposals. 

 
Ranking Criteria 
 
1.  Project Approach and Organization – a maximum of 50 points 
 
How will the consultants assigned to the project develop the Comprehensive Plan? 
 

 Description of approach to prepare the plan? 

 How will services be performed? 

 What do they propose as a scope of services? 
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 How do they plan to facilitate, encourage and implement public participation? 

 How much time will be budgeted for interaction with community stakeholders? 
 

2. Related Experience – a maximum of 25 points 
 

 Demonstration of personal and leadership skills necessary to navigate the project through 
the social and political issues that surround a project of this nature? 

 Description of a proven track record in successfully completing similar projects on time and 
within budget? Successful experience of both the firm itself and the individual team 
members will be considered. 

 What experience do the consultants assigned to the project have with community/public 
planning process? 

 What direct experience do the consultants assigned to the project have involving research 
and assessment and developing strategies and action plans, as it relates to communities of 
similar size and nature?  

 What direct experience do the consultants assigned to the project have working with diverse 
stakeholders in the development of community/neighborhood plans or initiatives? 

 
3. Schedule - a maximum of 10 points 
 

 What will be the proposed consultant project schedule and the staffing plan that will 
facilitate completion of the Plan in a timely manner?  How many on-site visits/meetings are 
planned? 

 Please provide an estimated time schedule for this proposal, which shows the amount of 
time per category and the total amount of time necessary to complete this project.  The time 
schedule should demonstrate the firm’s ability to proceed immediately and without delay.   

 
4. Cost- a maximum of 15 points 

 Demonstration of successful previous budget performance and experience in meeting 
project budgets.   

 Description of approach to budgeting and bidding. 

 Presentation of firm's best offer; firm "not to exceed" 

 
SECTION 5:  CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Upon selection of a Consultant, an Agreement or Contract for Services shall be entered into by the 
City and the Consultant.  It is expected that the contract will provide for compensation for actual 
work completed on a not to exceed basis with the following conditions.  The contract will be 
amended as appropriate for each successive phase.  
 

1. Deletion of specific components, such as individual project meetings, will be at the 
discretion of the City. Payment or reimbursement shall be made based on actual hours 
worked on the various tasks required for the project plus necessary subcontractor work 
(as applicable) and out of pocket expenses. Billing in excess of ‘not to exceed’ amount 
will not be compensated unless a contract extension has been approved in advance by 
the City Council. 



 8 

2. The City shall retain ownership of all documents, plans, maps, reports and data prepared 
under this proposal. In addition to being provided hard copy and digital documents 
throughout the project, the consultant shall supply the City of Big Lake with a fully 
scanned file upon project completion.   

3. If, for any reason, the Consultant is unable to fulfill the obligations under the contract in 
a timely and proper manner, the City reserves the right to terminate the contract by 
written notice. In this event, the firm shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for any satisfactory work completed to that point at the discretion of the City Engineer.  

4. The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any interest in the contract without prior 
written consent of the City. 

5. The Consultant contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.   
6. Project summaries shall be submitted with each invoice during the course of the project. 

Each summary shall detail the amount billed to date, work items that need to be 
completed, the estimated costs to complete these tasks and the projected timeline for the 
completion of the project.  Invoices submitted to the City shall include a detailed 
breakdown of times, personnel, mileage, etc. chargeable for that period.   

 

SECTION 6. COMMUNITY BACKGROUND 

 
Big Lake is located about 45 miles from the Minneapolis/St. Paul International Airport and 28 miles 
from the St. Cloud Regional Airport.  The 2010 Census reports the City of Big Lake's population to 
be 10,060 and Big Lake Township's population to be 7,386, totaling 17,446. The city has grown 
dramatically since the 1990, when the city’s population was just over 3,000, but it has managed to 
retain much of its small-town charm. Highway 10, nearby Interstate 94 (just a short drive away in 
neighboring Monticello), and the Northstar Commuter Rail provide fast and easy access to the 
greater Twin Cities metropolitan area. Residents also have convenient access to Saint Cloud. Big 
Lake is situated right at the edge of northern Minnesota and cabin country. Residents have many of 
the benefits of living “up north” but still have access to all of the cultural amenities that come with 
living in a major metropolitan region. 
 
Big Lake is a great place to live and work. The community is very tight-knit and has many thriving 
small and local businesses. The city itself and the surrounding area boast numerous recreational 
opportunities. The jewel of the city’s park system is Lakeside Park, a 12-acre park with boating, 
swimming, picnicking, and outdoor sports facilities. The community is proud of its full spectrum of 
housing options for all ages and lifestyles. Big Lake has a large stock of starter homes for young 
families and more recently has begun attracting investment from developers seeking to construct 
more “step-up type” housing for larger families with more established finances. The city also has a 
healthy amount of apartment units, both affordable and market rate, and most of these are located 
in close proximity to the walkable city center.  
 
More information on the City of Big Lake can be found on the City website and related links at 
www.BigLakeMN.org. 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED PRIOR TO 4:30 P.M. ON 
OCTOBER 14, 2016.  LATE SUBMITTALS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED. 


